
 

 

 
Notice of a public meeting of  

Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
 
To: Councillors Melly (Chair), Cuthbertson (Vice-Chair), 

Baxter, Clarke, Hook, Kilbane, Knight, Mason, D Myers, 
Nicholls, Ravilious, Smalley, Widdowson, Warters and 
Wilson 
 

Date: Thursday, 10 April 2025 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: West Offices 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Apologies for Absence    
 To receive and note apologies for absence. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest   (Pages 7 - 8) 
 At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are 

asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other 
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on this 
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the Register 
of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest. 
 
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting. 
 
[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members]. 
 

3. Exclusion of Press and Public    
 To consider excluding the public and press from the meeting 

during consideration of agenda item 7 on the grounds that it 
contains information relating to any action taken or to be taken in 
connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of 
crime. This information is classed as exempt under Paragraph 7 
of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 
1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
information) (Variation) Order 2006. 



 

 
4. Minutes   (Pages 9 - 

18) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 

2025. 
 

5. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak 
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee. 
 
Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2 
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the 
management of public participation at our meetings.  The 
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday 8 
April 2025.   
 
To register to speak please visit 
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online 
registration form.  If you have any questions about the 
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic 
Services.  Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda. 
 
Webcasting of Public Meetings 
 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will 
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have 
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on 
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. 
 

6. Primate Licensing Report   (Pages 19 - 
22) 

 This report advises members of the Animal Welfare (Primate 
Licences) (England) Regulations 2024 and seeks members 
approval of the proposed fees.   
 

7. Club Salvation Update    
 A verbal update will be given on Club Salvation. 

 
8. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts


 

Democracy Officer: 
Contact details:  
Angela Bielby  
Contact Details:  
Telephone – (01904) 552599 
Email – a.bielby@york.gov.uk 
 
For more information about any of the following please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
Contact details are set out above. 
 
 

Alternative formats 

To request reasonable adjustments or to provide this document in an alternative 
language or format such as large print, braille, audio, Easy Read or BSL, you 
can: 

 

Email us at:  cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk 

 

Call us: 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your 
request onto the Access Team. 

 

Use our BSL Video Relay Service: 
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService 

Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu. 
 

 

We can also translate into the following languages: 

 
 

mailto:a.bielby@york.gov.uk
mailto:cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService


 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Declarations of Interest – guidance for Members 
 
(1) Members must consider their interests, and act according to the 

following: 
 

Type of Interest You must 

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest, not participate 
in the discussion or vote, and leave 
the meeting unless you have a 
dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the 
item only if the public are also 
allowed to speak, but otherwise not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the 
meeting, participate and vote unless 
the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being: 

(a) to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interest or well-being of 
a majority of inhabitants of the 
affected ward; and 

(b) a reasonable member of the 
public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it would affect your view 
of the wider public interest. 

In which case, speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to 
speak, but otherwise do not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

 
(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or 

their spouse/partner. 
 

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must 
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, 

Page 5 Agenda Item 2



and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to 
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal 
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

 

Page 6



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing And Regulatory Committee 

Date 5 March 2025 

Present 
 
 
 
In Attendance 

Councillors Melly (Chair), Cuthbertson (Vice-
Chair), Baxter, Clarke, Hook, D Myers, 
Nicholls, Ravilious and Widdowson 
 
Matt Boxall, Head of Public Protection 
Sandra Branigan, Senior Lawyer 
Lesley Cooke, Licensing Manager 
David Cowley, Taxi Licensing Manager 
 

Apologies Councillors Kilbane, Knight, Mason, Smalley, 
Warters And Wilson 

 
PART A - MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 

 
[See also under Part B] 

 
83. Apologies For Absence (5.33pm)  

 
Apologies for absence were received and noted for Cllrs 
Kilbane, Warters, Wilson, Knight, Mason and Smalley. 
 
 

84. Declarations of Interest (5.33pm)  
 
Members were invited to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests, or 
any disclosable pecuniary interests that they might have in 
respect of business on the agenda. There were none. 
 
 

85. Minutes (5.33pm)  
 
Resolved:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 November 

2024 be approved and signed as a correct record 
and the minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 
2025 be approved and signed as a correct record 
subject to the removal of Cllr Baxter as the seconder 
for the recommendation for agenda item 6 - 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



Gambling Act 2005 - Statements Of Licensing 
Policy. 

 
86. Public Participation (5.36pm)  

 
It was reported that there had been one registration to speak on 
Agenda item 6 Taxi Licensing - Unmet Demand Survey. 
 
Flick Williams believed that the unmet demand survey should 
not be delayed and she would like the survey to be more 
frequent than every five years. She asked how people could be 
encouraged to be car free if there were no taxis available. She 
explained she had a difficulty getting a taxi for an emergency 
the previous December and could not get a taxi back which 
resulted in her getting a bus and suffering a disability hate 
crime. 
 

87. Taxi Licensing - Unmet Demand Survey (5.40pm)  
 
Members considered a report that sought their approval to 
undertake an unmet demand survey in relation to hackney 
carriage provision within the authority area. The Taxi Licensing 
Manager outlined the report noting that in October there had 
been three outstanding Hackney Carriage Vehicle (HCV) 
licences and there were three coming on board in the coming 
weeks. He noted the updated guidance which advised that the 
unmet demand survey should be undertaken every five years, 
but officers are recommended that survey is completed in 2025 
in line with the previous guidance (every three years). The Head 
of Public Protection clarified that should it be approved; the 
survey would be booked immediately. The Licensing Manager 
explained that officers had gone through the 200 applicants on 
the waiting list and they were now dealing with new applicants 
coming forward for HCV licences. 
 
In response to questions from Members, officers explained that: 

 They would engage with consultants to undertake an unmet 
demand survey and there would be a lead in time for the 
survey. 

 The unmet demand survey could be undertaken earlier than 
the Department for Transport (DfT) recommendation. 

 The booking of a wheelchair accessible vehicle (WAV) could 
be written into the proposal for the unmet demand survey, 
working with private hire companies regarding WAV. 

Page 8



 The proposals for the unmet demand survey could be shared 
with Members. 

 
The Committee had the following options available to them in 
making their decision: 
 
Option 1 – Authorise officers to engage a transport consultancy 
to undertake an unmet demand survey, and once completed 
bring the results of the survey to this committee for this issue to 
be considered further. 
 
 Option 2 – Wait a further two years (this being 5 years since the 
last survey) before undertaking an unmet demand survey and 
therefore following the updated 2023 DFT best practice 
guidance.  
 
 Option 3 – Take no action at this time (this could leave the 
Council at risk of legal challenge). 
 
Cllr Widdowson proposed the officer recommendation to 
approve option 1 to authorise officers to engage a transport 
consultancy to undertake an unmet demand survey, and once 
completed bring the results of the survey to the committee for 
this issue to be considered further. This was seconded by Cllr 
Cuthbertson. Following a unanimous vote it was: 
 
Resolved:  That officers be authorised to engage a transport 

consultancy to undertake an unmet demand 
survey, and once completed bring the results of the 
survey to this committee for this issue to be 
considered further. 

 
Reason:   This will allow the Council to undertake an unmet 

demand survey, with the allocation of the two 
remaining Hackney Carriage licences (due to be in 
operation prior to the commencement of the 
survey), it will enable Members to consider the 
impact of the additional licences before 
determining firstly whether or not to continue to 
restrict the number of Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
licences, and/or the number and type of vehicle 
they should be issued to.   

 
 
 

Page 9



 
 
 

88. Licensing Act 2003 - Cumulative Impact Assessment and 
Statement Of Licensing Policy (5.49pm)  
 
[See also under Part B] 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Section 5 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) Members considered a report 
that sought their support of the formal review of the council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy. The report advised Members of 
the consultation undertaken and amendments made.  In 
accordance with the requirements of Section 5A of the 2003 Act 
this report also sought Members support of the implementation 
of a Cumulative Impact Assessment in relation to part of the city 
centre and the report advised them of the consultation 
undertaken. The report also sought a recommendation to 
Council that the revised Policy and Cumulative Impact 
Assessment be adopted.  
 
The Licensing Manager outlined the report noting the 
recommendation to approve Option 1 and recommend to 
Council that the revised Statement of Licensing Policy and 
Cumulative Impact Assessment, set out at Annex 1 and 2, be 
adopted. She noted the work of the working group to review the 
Statement of Licensing Policy (Policy) and the Cumulative 
Impact Assessment (CIA) and noted that both reviews were 
undertaken at the same time. She noted that premises licence 
applications were considered on their own merits. She 
explained that the red and amber zones had been taken out of 
the Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ). She noted that consultation 
had been undertaken and five consultation responses had been 
received. She detailed the annexes and two options available to 
Members. 
 
The Licensing Manager explained that paragraphs 12.5 and 
12.6 and 14 needed to be removed from the draft Statement of 
Licensing Policy due to recent changes in legislation. She noted 
that the policy had been changed to enable Members to sit on 
the Sub-Committee for licensing applications in their own Ward. 
A Member thanked the working group for their work on the 
policy. 
In response to questions from Members, the Licensing Manager 
explained that: 

Page 10



 Part of Piccadilly in the CIA had the highest level of anti 
social behaviour. 

 Regarding whether the waste section in the policy could be 
strengthened, the section on waste was a new section in the 
policy and it was not thought that a licence could be removed 
or given based on waste. She undertook to speak to the 
manager of the enforcement officers about waste. A Member 
commented that different councils, for example Westminster, 
had By Laws on waste. The Senior Lawyer advised that the 
policy could not bring in by laws. . A Member noted they 
would like that section strengthening and the Licensing 
Manager noted that links to relevant legislation could be 
provided in that part of the policy after speaking to the 
manager of enforcement officers. A Member added that the 
section in the Westminster policy was similar to that of the 
council policy. 

 Paragraph 4.19 was a new addition to the policy and it was 
not possible to make premises have arrangements in place 
to get their staff home safely. 

 Paragraph 11.6 could be changed to remove gendered 
language to the replace pronouns with ‘them.’ 

 It was confirmed that hate crime was reported to the police. 

 The use of apps was included at paragraph 5.5.  

 Under section 4.19 an additional bullet point could be added 
regarding apps and QR codes, the wording of which could be 
agreed with the Chair and Vice Chair. The Chair noted that 
this was included at paragraph 5.23. 

 Regarding whether paragraph 5.23 could include a reference 
to ID on mobile phones, premises had a challenge 25 policy 
and they stipulated what forms of ID was acceptable. 

 
The Committee had the following options available to them in 
making their decision:  
 
Option 1 – Recommendation to Council that the draft Policy and 
CIA are adopted.   
 
Option 2 – Recommendation to Council that the draft Policy 
and/or CIA is amended with alternative wording agreed by 
members.    
 
Cllr Widdowson moved and Cllr Hook seconded Option 2 – that 
a recommendation be made to Council that the draft Policy 
and/or CIA is amended with alternative wording agreed by 
Members. The amendments to the policy were the deletion of 

Page 11



paragraphs 12.5, 12.6 and 14, remove gendered language in 
paragraph 11.4 with him/her to be replace with them, the 
addition of the word reported in paragraph 14.19, the addition of 
QR codes in paragraph 5.23 and the wording of references to 
waste and food waste to be agreed by officers in conjunction to 
the Chair and Vice Chair. The Senior Lawyer asked the 
Licensing Officers to confirm whether further consultation was 
needed and the Licensing Manager confirmed that this was not 
necessary as there were minor changes to the wording in the 
policy. On being put to the vote it was unanimously; 
 
Resolved:  That it be recommended to Council that the draft 

Policy and/or CIA is amended with alternative 
wording agreed by members.    

 
Reason:   To meet the legislative requirements of the Licensing 

Act 2005.   
 

89. Programme of Work (6.21pm)  
 
The Chair advised that no items had been allocated to future 
meetings. A Member asked about the progress of the street 
trading working group. The Chair advised that there had been 
one meeting of the working group and there was no update from 
the previous meeting as the working group had not met since 
the last meeting. The Licensing Manager noted that she had 
asked Members of the working group for their availability in late 
March and noted that the map of the location of trading units 
had been shared with Members. In response to a Member 
question she could discuss a timeline for an update with the 
working group and an update report would be brought to a 
future meeting. 
 

PART B - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL 
 
[See also under Part A] 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Section 5 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) Members considered a report 
that sought their support of the formal review of the council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy. The report advised Members of 
the consultation undertaken and amendments made.  In 
accordance with the requirements of Section 5A of the 2003 Act 
this report also sought Members support of the implementation 
of a Cumulative Impact Assessment in relation to part of the city 

Page 12



centre and the report advised them of the consultation 
undertaken. The report also sought a recommendation to 
Council that the revised Policy and Cumulative Impact 
Assessment be adopted.  
 
The Licensing Manager outlined the report noting the 
recommendation to approve Option 1 and recommend to 
Council that the revised Statement of Licensing Policy and 
Cumulative Impact Assessment, set out at Annex 1 and 2, be 
adopted. She noted the work of the working group to review the 
Statement of Licensing Policy (Policy) and the Cumulative 
Impact Assessment (CIA) and noted that both reviews were 
undertaken at the same time. She noted that premises licence 
applications were considered on their own merits. She 
explained that the red and amber zones had been taken out of 
the Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ). She noted that consultation 
had been undertaken and five consultation responses had been 
received. She detailed the annexes and two options available to 
Members. 
 
The Licensing Manager explained that paragraphs 12.5 and 
12.6 and 14 needed to be removed from the draft Statement of 
Licensing Policy due to recent changes in legislation. She noted 
that the policy had been changed to enable Members to sit on 
the Sub-Committee for licensing applications in their own Ward. 
A Member thanked the working group for their work on the 
policy. 
In response to questions from Members, the Licensing Manager 
explained that: 

 Part of Piccadilly in the CIA had the highest level of anti 
social behaviour. 

 Regarding whether the waste section in the policy could be 
strengthened, the section on waste was a new section in the 
policy and it was not thought that a licence could be removed 
or given based on waste. She undertook to speak to the 
manager of the enforcement officers about waste. A Member 
commented that different councils, for example Westminster, 
had By Laws on waste. The Senior Lawyer advised that the 
policy could not bring in by laws. . A Member noted they 
would like that section strengthening and the Licensing 
Manager noted that links to relevant legislation could be 
provided in that part of the policy after speaking to the 
manager of enforcement officers. A Member added that the 
section in the Westminster policy was similar to that of the 
council policy. 

Page 13



 Paragraph 4.19 was a new addition to the policy and it was 
not possible to make premises have arrangements in place 
to get their staff home safely. 

 Paragraph 11.6 could be changed to remove gendered 
language to the replace pronouns with ‘them.’ 

 It was confirmed that hate crime was reported to the police. 

 The use of apps was included at paragraph 5.5.  

 Under section 4.19 an additional bullet point could be added 
regarding apps and QR codes, the wording of which could be 
agreed with the Chair and Vice Chair. The Chair noted that 
this was included at paragraph 5.23. 

 Regarding whether paragraph 5.23 could include a reference 
to ID on mobile phones, premises had a challenge 25 policy 
and they stipulated what forms of ID was acceptable. 

 
The Committee had the following options available to them in 
making their decision:  
 
Option 1 – Recommendation to Council that the draft Policy and 
CIA are adopted.   
 
Option 2 – Recommendation to Council that the draft Policy 
and/or CIA is amended with alternative wording agreed by 
members.    
 
Cllr Widdowson moved and Cllr Hook seconded Option 2 – that 
a recommendation be made to Council that the draft Policy 
and/or CIA is amended with alternative wording agreed by 
Members. The amendments to the policy were the deletion of 
paragraphs 12.5, 12.6 and 14, remove gendered language in 
paragraph 11.4 with him/her to be replace with them, the 
addition of the word reported in paragraph 14.19, the addition of 
QR codes in paragraph 5.23 and the wording of references to 
waste and food waste to be agreed by officers in conjunction to 
the Chair and Vice Chair. The Senior Lawyer asked the 
Licensing Officers to confirm whether further consultation was 
needed and the Licensing Manager confirmed that this was not 
necessary as there were minor changes to the wording in the 
policy. On being put to the vote it was unanimously; 
 
Resolved:  That it be recommended to Council that the draft 

Policy and/or CIA is amended with alternative 
wording agreed by members.    

 
Reason:   To meet the legislative requirements of the Licensing 

Page 14



Act 2005.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Melly, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.32 pm and finished at 6.25 pm]. 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 

 

  
                                                       Agenda Item 

   

 
Licensing & Regulatory Committee 
 

10 April 2025 

Report from the Director – Environment, Transport and Planning 
 

Primate Licensing  

Summary 

1. This report advises members of the Animal Welfare (Primate 
Licences) (England) Regulations 2024 and seeks members approval 
of the proposed fees.   
 

Recommendations 

2. That Members approve Option 1 and note the content of this report 
and agree to implement the fees shown in paragraph 11.   

Reason:  To meet the legislative requirements of the Animal Welfare 
(Primate Licences) (England) Regulations 2024.  

 

Background  

3. In 2024, the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 
(Defra), through regulations made under the Animal Welfare Act 2006, 
introduced the Animal Welfare (Primate Licences) (England) 
Regulations 2024 (Regulations).  The licensing authority for the 
purposes of these Regulations is the local authority in whose area the 
premises at which a primate is kept or is to be kept are situated.   

4. The Regulations introduce a licensing scheme, setting strict rules to 
ensure that only private keepers, who can provide zoo-level welfare 
standards, will be able to keep primates.   

5. The Regulations come into force on 6 April 2025, at which time 
existing private primate keepers can apply for a primate licence.  From 
the 6 April 2026, all private primate keepers and people proposing to 
keep primates will be required to hold a licence.   

Page 17 Agenda Item 6



 

6. The Regulations set out the application process and the conditions 
that must be placed on the licence if granted – further conditions may 
be stipulated in and statutory guidance.   

7. An inspection must be carried out prior to an application being 
determined, and a further inspection is required on at least one 
occasion during the duration of the licence, if a licence is issued for 
more than twelve months.  These inspections must be conducted by a 
“suitable person” which is defined by the Regulations as being: 

a) a veterinarian; or 

b) any other person who, in the view of the local authority, is suitably 
qualified and competent to carry out the inspection.  

8. A licence must be granted for a period of three years, or where the 
applicant has requested a licence for a period of less than three years, 
for such shorter period that the applicant has requested.   

9. There are provisions in the Regulations for the holder of a primate 
licence to request to vary or surrendered the licence.  

10. There are also provisions in the Regulations for licensing authorities to 
revoke or vary the primate licence.  

11. An application fee may be charged, and a fee can be charged in 
respect of any inspections.  The proposed fees in the table below 
estimate the cost recovery of undertaking this licensing function.  
These fees will be reviewed annually when all discretionary licensing 
fees are reviewed.   

1 year 2 year 3 year 

£386.00 £485.00 £499.00 

 

12. Official statutory guidance is expected, similar to that provided under 
the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities involving Animals) 
(England) Regulations 2018.  At the time of writing this report the 
guidance has not been published by Defra.   

Consultation 

13. A consultation has not taken place with regards to this matter.  Defra 
undertook a formal consultation on the proposals for the introduction 

Page 18

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/primate-licensing-scheme/outcome/summary-of-responses-and-government-response


 

of a specialist licence for private primate keepers from 20 June – 18 
July 2023.   

Options 

14. Option 1 – that members note the content of this report and agree to 
implement the fees shown at paragraph 10.   

15. Option 2 – that members note the content of this report and ask 
officers to reassess the fees.    

Analysis 
 
16. The fees proposed are based on fees set by the Council for other 

animal welfare licensing functions under the Animal Welfare 
(Licensing of Activities involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 
and Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976.   

Council Priorities 

17. The functions support the Council’s Plan ‘One City, for all’. 

Implications 

18. The implications arising from this report are: 

 Financial:  There are no financial implications associated with this 
report.   

 
 Human Resources:  There are no Human Resources implications 

associated with this report. 
 

 Equalities:  There are no Equalities implications associated with 
this report.  

 
 Legal: The Animal Welfare (Primate Licences) (England) 

Regulations 2024 have been made under section 13 of the Animal 
Welfare Act 2006 and place powers and responsibilities on the 
Council in respect of licensing of those that keep primates in their 
area.  

 Crime and Disorder:  There are no crime and disorder 
implications.  It is an offence the for a private keeper to keep 
primates without a licence, it is also an offence if the holder of a 
primate licence fails to comply with a licence condition.   

Page 19



 

 Information Technology (IT):  There are no IT implications 
associated with this report. 

 
 Other:  There are no other implications associated with this report. 

Risk Management 

19. There are no known risk associated with this report. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 
Lesley Cooke 
Licensing Manager 
Phone: 551515 

 
James Gilchrist 
Director (Environment, Transport and 
Planning) 
 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
 

Date  

 
Specialist Officer Implications:  None 

Wards Affected:   All  

 
Background Papers: 
 
The Animal Welfare (Primate Licences) (England) Regulations 2024 

Page 20

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2024/296/made#:~:text=Citation%2C%20commencement%2C%20extent%20and%20application,force%20on%206th%20April%202026

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Primate Licensing Report

